BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the Ninth Board’s Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly IFMR
Investment Managers Private Limited) (“the Company”) for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Financial Performance:

The summarized standalone result of your Company is given in the table below.
: (in INR Lakhs)

Particulars As on March 31, As on March 31,
2022 2021

Income 3,088.87 2,411.59
Less: Expenditure 1,885.08 1,240.99
Gross profit before depreciation 1,203.79 1,170.60
Less: Depreciation for the year 5.19 0.05
PBT (Profit/(Loss) before Tax) 1,198.60 1,170.56
Less: Provision for tax (Current year) 327.45 264.48
Less: Deferred tax -19.66 32.31
PAT (Profit/(Loss) after Tax) 890.81 873.76
Profit brought forward from previous year 1800.22 909.78
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
Less: Reclassification of remeasurement of net
defined benefit liability -17.26 16.67
Balance carried forward to balance sheet 2673.76 1,800.22

Summary of Operations:

During the year, the net revenue from operations of your Company is INR 3,088.87Lakhs (Previous year —
INR 2,411.59 Lakhs). For FY 2020-21, your Company’s Profit after tax stood at INR 890.81Lakhs vis-a-vis a
Profit after tax of INR 873.76 Lakhs in the previous year.




Business Review/ State of Company’s Affairs

FY22 was the best year till date for NAIM as we doubled our assets under management to INR 2918 crore.
NAIM closed FY22 with cumulative investor commitments of INR 3,187 crore across all its funds and
brought on board 414 new investors during the year, comprising corporates, family offices and HNIs. A
total of INR 6,392 crore was deployed across sectors during the year, while the cumulative distributions
made to investors stood at INR 851 crore, as at the end of the year.

Fund raising and deployment was mildly impacted during Q1FY22 due to Covid wave. Despite the
lockdown situation and containment zones in multiple parts of the country, all our active funds
maintained excellent portfolio quality and delivered consistent cashflow pay-outs to investors throughout
the year with no instances of any shortfall or delay. As the COVID cases started to subside and investor
confidence got revived, fund raising picked up and green-shoe option was exercised for both Northern
Arc Income Builder Fund Series-II (INR 200cr + INR 150cr) and Northern Arc India Impact Fund (INR 350cr
+ INR 350 cr). The Northern Arc Impact Fund was our first fund offering with a Mauritius feeder access for
offshore investors, and we clocked USD 26mn in FY22 and expecting another USD 8.5mn in Q1FY23.

Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund has become our flagship fund as it continued to be a competent
alternative for investors to park their short-term funds (3-6 months) with a target return of ~9%. The fund
achieved a peak AUM of INR 1225 crore in March 2022. The fund has received investments of INR 1,700
crore from 367 investors and has successfully redeemed investor capital of around INR 1096 crore during
the year under review.

NAIM launched a new platform — Portfolio Management Services in FY22 to broad base the product
offerings for its investors. Northern Arc Income Builder - Series A was launched as the first Discretionary
PMS portfolio of Listed Principal Protected MLDs with a target size of INR 250 crore. This provides an
investor with not only a curated set of investments with the benefit of significant diversification, easy exit
options and superior risk adjusted returns but also allows investors to leverage on Northern Arc’s
specialized asset management, deep insight on portfolio companies and high touch monitoring.

NAIM’s digitisation journey picked up steam in FY22 with vendor solutions piloted and successful parallel
implementation underway. Besides system calculation of net asset values, investor portal access on NAV,
statement of accounts, fund factsheet information etc. is in parallel run mode with rollout starting April
2022. Digital and single step investor onboarding for both AIF and PMS products has gone live reducing
operational friction for new investors.

IFMR Fimpact Medium Term Opportunities Fund (“Fund 5”) received a one-notch upgrade in FY22 to AA+
(SO) from AA- (SO), showcasing the confidence CRISIL has on NAIM’s fund management and underwriting
capabilities.

NAIM was featured in the ImpactAssets50 list consecutively for the second year in FY22, an annual
showcase featuring fifty fund managers from across the world, who led their respective fields in creating
positive social impact, while generating financial returns for investors. This makes us the only Debt fund
from India to receive this honour. Along with this, NAIM added another feather to its hat by securing the
first place in the category 'Most Consistent Top Performing Private Debt Fund Manager' by Preqin. All
these recognitions from international forums, along with the earlier awards conferred on NAIM for
excellence and innovation in the fund management domain, are a testimony of the extensive underwriting
expertise, innovative approach towards investment management and thought leadership in that NAIM
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brings about in its target sectors. The recognitions reinforce the belief that NAIM is a unique debt AIF
platform delivering superior risk-adjusted returns to investors while creating positive social impact.

Dividend:
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under review.

Transfer to Reserves:

During the financial year 2021-22, the company has transferred a sum of Rs. Nil Crore to Capital Redemption
Reserve account on account of redemption of redeemable preference shares.

Details of Board meetings:

During the year, 4 (Four) number of Board meetings were held, details of which are given below:

1

2 27.07.2021

3 08.11,2021

4 10.02.2022 4

Changes in Board of Directors:

During the financial year, the following changes occurred in the Board of Directors of the Company:

Mr. Chaitanya Pande who retired by rotation was reappointed by the members at the Annual General
Meeting held on 29th November 2021.

Mr. Nicholas Anthony Moon was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from May
05, 2021. Mr. Ashish Mehrotra was appointed as Additional Director of the Company with effect from July
27,2021 As per the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 additional directors hold office
up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, in terms of the requirements of the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013, appointment of both Mr. Nick Moon and Mr. Ashish Mehrotra was
regularized at the Annual General Meeting held on 29th November 2021 and they were appointed as Non-
Executive Director of the company, whose office is liable to retire by rotation

Mr. Theodoor Brouwers (DIN: 08261000) was appointed as Independent Director of the company at the
Sixth Annual General Meeting of the company held on 05th September 2019 for a period of three years
with effect from October 22, 2018 till October 21, 2021. His first term of three years was completed on
October 21, 2021 and being eligible for reappointment for a second term, he was appointed as
Independent Director of the Company for a second consecutive term of three years to hold office from
October 21, 2021 till October 20, 2024.




Change in Key Managerial Personnel:
During the financial year, there were no changes in terms of appointment/ cessation of the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Audit Committee:

The company is not mandatorily required under Section 177 of the Companies Act to constitute an Audit
Committee. However, the company has an Audit Committee comprising of the following members:

The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Sl. No. | Name of member

1 Ms. Kshama Fernandes — Director

2 Mr. Chaitanya Pande — Director

3 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers — Independent Director

Extract of Annual Return:

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual return is Annexed as Annexure 1.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

Pursuant to the requirement of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013,
your Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for
that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.




Statutory Auditors& Auditors Report:

M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022) had been
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the annual general meeting held in 2018 for a period
of 5 years for financial years 2018-19 till 2022-23. BSR & Co., resigned as statutory auditors of the company
due to regulatory change on maximum tenure of statutory auditors, brought about by Guidelines for
Appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks
(excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021, issued by Reserve Bank of India,
resulting in a casual vacancy in the office of statutory auditors of the Company as per Section 139(8) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”).

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, having ICAl Firm Registration No:
101049W/E300004 were at the EGM of the company held on 29th December 2021 appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy and to hold the office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company ie, the annual general meeting to be held for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022.

There has been no qualification, reservation or adverse remark given by the Statutory Auditors in their
Report for the year under review.

Related party transactions:

During the year, your Company has not entered into any transactions with Related Parties which are not
in the ordinary course of its business or not on an arm’s length basis and which require disclosure in this
Report in terms of the provisions of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Risk Management:

The Company keeps the Board informed periodically of the significant risks associated with the business of
the company and the various risk identification and mitigation processes put in place by the management.
In the opinion of the Board, the Company has developed and implemented risk management procedures
that are sufficient to combat risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. The enterprise risk
management framework has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to review from time to
time.

Reporting of Frauds by the Auditors to the Company:

During the year, there has been no reporting of any frauds by the Auditors to the Audit Committee and
Board as per Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration of Independence:

The Independent Director has given a declaration that he meets the criteria of Independence as required
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013.



Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

The company had not given any loans or guarantee or provided any security to its directors or any other
person in whom the director is interested. Neither had it granted any loans, secured or unsecured, given
guarantee or provided any security to any other body corporate. The company had not acquired by way
of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body corporate except investment as
a sponsor contributor in the alternative investment funds managed by it.

Information on material changes and commitments:

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year and date of this report. We also hereby confirm that
there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and Company’s operation in future:

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status operations of your Company in future,

Internal financial controls:

In the last financial year, the completeness and adequacy of internal financial controls of the Company
was evaluated by an independent audit agency and report of the same has been shared with the Statutory
Auditors of the Company. During FY 2021-22, the internal financial controls were tested and presented to
the Audit Committee for its review. The Audit Committee has reviewed the internal financial controls and
stated that the controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

Fixed Deposits:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public during the year 2021-22.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual and
endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassmentincluding
sexual harassment. During the year under review, your Company has not received any complaintspertaining
to sexual harassment. Your company has also complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The Company has no activity relating to conservation of energy and technology absorption.
There were no foreign exchange earnings during the period under review. The foreign exchange outgoings
were INR 1,22,73,683/-. Details of forex outgoing is as follows:




Professional Charges 95,14,361
Subscription 19,32,353
Director Sitting Fee 8,26,969
Total 1,22,73,683

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee with the following members

of the Board as its members:

1. Ms. Kshama Fernandes, Director
2. Mr. Chaitanya Pande, Director
3. Mr. Theodoor Brouwers, Independent Director

Northern Arc Capital Limited (the company’s holding company) along with its subsidiaries (Northern Arc
Group) is committed to making a direct contribution to society as a part of its Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) agenda. The Northern Arc Group has launched Northern Arc Foundation, a section 8
company which shall focus on building livelihood, skill and vocational development of communities
traditionally marginalised by formal systems, enhancing people’s well being through knowledge building
and innovation. The foundation will also focus on other charitable and socially beneficial purposes related
to education and other training and development initiatives. The Northern Arc group shall contribute to
CSR through the Northern Arc Foundation.

The Northern Arc Group has also formulated a CSR policy in line with the provisions of Section 135 read
with Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

For the FY 2021-22, an amount of INR 11,00,000/- had been earmarked for the CSR budget, being 2% of
the average of the net profits of the preceding three financial years. The entire amount has been spent
during the FY 2021-22 .

The Board, on the recommendation of the CSR Committee had approved the spending of an amount up to
INR 11,00,000/- (Eleven Lakhs only) through Northern Arc Foundation, towards relief for Covid related
support in the form of oxygen concentrators, PPE gears, masks, gloves, etc. as part of the CSR initiative
of the company in accordance with the CSR Policy. The said sanctioned amount of INR 11,00,000/- was
entirely disbursed and spent during the FY 2021-22.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities is enclosed as per prescribed format as Annexure 2 and forms part of
this report.

Regulatory Compliances:

The Company has complied with all the mandatory regulatory compliances as required under the
Companies Act, various tax statutes and other regulatory bodies.



Secretarial Standards Compliances:

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for employees at all levels, who have contributed to the
growth and performance of your Company.

Your Directors also thank the clients, vendors, bankers, shareholders and advisers of the Company for
their continued support.

Your Directors also thank the Central and State Governments, and other statutory authorities for their
continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly IFMR Investment Managers Private

Limited) ,O
/\ e
Ks a Fernghdes itanya Pande

‘Whole Tim€ Director irector
DIN: 02539429 DIN: 06934810

Date: May 05, 2022
Place: Mumbai




Annexure 1

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on the financial year ended on 31*'March 2021 of
NORTHERN ARC INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly IFMR INVESTMENT MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

[Pursuant to Section 92(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

iii)

iv)

vi)

vii)

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
CIN : U74120TN2014PTC095064
Registration Date:17.02.2014

Name of the Company: Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (formerly IFMR
Investment Managers Private Limited)

Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company Limited by Shares, Indian Non-
Government Company

Address of the Registered Office and contact details:

IITM Research Park, Phase I, 10™ Floor, 1 Kanagam Village, (Behind Tidel Park), Taramani,
Chennai-600113

Tel: +91 44 66687000 Fax: +91 44 66687010
E-mail:IMcompliance @northernarc.com

Whether listed company ¥es/ No- Unlisted Company
Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA), if any —Karvy Fintech

Pvt. Ltd, Karvy Selenium Tower B, Piot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Hyderabad — 500 032




Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-

1, Mangement of Investment - 6630 100% of business
Funds income
. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

1. | Northern Arc Capital| U65910TN1989| Holding 100% 2(46)
Limited(formerly IFMR| PLC017021 Company (including
Capital Finance Limited) shares held

in
IITM  Research Park, beneficial
Phase I, 10TH Floor, 1 interest)
Kanagam
Village,(Behind Tidel
Park),
Taramani,Chennai-
600113

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) As
per Annexure A

(i) Category-wise Share Holding:
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: Change
; i held at the end of
Category of Sharehicklers No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the Sirkia
the year year
the
year
% of % of
total total
shares shares
Demat | Physical | Total (Ona Demat | Physical | Total (Ona
fully fully
diluted diluted
basis) basis)
A. Promoters (1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Bodies Corp -Northern Arc
Capital Ltd and its nominee (s) 0| 361000 | 361000 100% 361000 | 361000 | 100%
e) Banks/ FI 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (1):- 0| 361000 | 361000 100% 0| 361000 | 361000 100%
(2) Foreign
a) NRls - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other — Individuals 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. - Northern Arc
Capital Ltd and its nominee g 0 e 0 L 0
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any Other.... 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 0| 361000 | 361000 0| 361000 | 361000
B. Public Shareholding
L.Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
g) Fils 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
h) Foreign Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Funds

i) Others - Foreign Company 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B){1):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
uptoRs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sub-total (B)(2):- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Public

Shareholding(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) . b < ¢ 0 0 0

C. Shares held by Custodian for 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 0| 361000 | 361000 | 100.00% 0| 361000( 361000| 100%
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

Sl. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning | Shareholding at the end of the | % change in
No. Name of the year year shareholding
during
theyear
No. of % of | % of | No. of % of % of
Shares total | Shares Shares total | Shares
Shares of | pledged/ Shares of | pledged /
the | encumber the | encumber
company| o4 to total company| ed to
shares | total
shares
1. | Northern Arc| 3,61,000 100 Nil 3,61,000 100 Nil Nil
Capital
Limited(formerly
IFMR Capital
Finance Private !
Limited) |
(including shares |
held by
Nominees) r
}
* includes six (6) equity shares held by 6 nominees
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:
Sl. Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding during
No. beginning the year
of the year
No.of | %oftotal | No.ofshares |% of total
shares | shares of shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 3,61,000 100 3,61,000 100
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Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the
Year specifying the
increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

reasons

for

At the end of the year

3,61,000

100

3,61,000 100

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs): Nil (Since all the shares are held by Promoters)

(v). Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

’_

Shareholding at the end of the

Sl. For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the beginning
No. of the year year
No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
Name of Director/KMP shares of the shares of
company the company

1 Dr. Kshama Fernandes, Director 1 | Negligible 1 Negligible

2 Mr. Ravi Vukkadala, 1 Negligible 1 Negligible
Chief Executive Officer

3 Mr.  Kalyanasundaram, Chief 1 | Negligible 1 Negligible
Financial Officer |
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment-
(Amount in Lakhs)

Secured
Loans excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the
beginning
of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

i) Interest due but not
paid

iii) Interest accrued but
not due

2138.40

2138.40

Total (i+ii-+iii)

2138.40

2138.40

Change in Indebtedness
during
the financial year

* Addition
* Reduction

8608.48
(9357.00)

8608.48
(9357.00)

Net Change

-748.52

-748.52

Indebtedness at the end of

the financlal year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not
paid

iiii) Interest accrued but
not due

1389.88

1389.88

Total (i+ii+iii)

1389.88

1389.88




VI .REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND/OR MANAGER: Not
applicable as the Company had no managing director, whole time directors or managers in 2021-

22.

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: The Non-Executive independent and Non-Independent

Non Executive Director were paid sitting fees. During the year under review, the details of sitting

fees paid to the directors are as follows;

Sl. No. Name of Directors Total Sitting fee (In Lakhs)
1 Mr. Chaitanya Pande 5.25
2 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers 8.27

e Commission: No Commission was paid during the year.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER/WTD:

Sl Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total
No. Amount
(Rsin
Lacs)
CFO CEO Company
Secretary

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 11.86 136.47 19.91 168.24

1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of

Income Tax Act, 1961 ) Lk Rl 11.67

(c) Profit in lieu of salary u/s 17(3) of

Income Tax At, 1961 3 5 i .
2 Stock option 2.41 0.02 2.43
3. Sweat Equity - - - -
4, Commission

- as % of profits " . . =
- others

5. Others - - -

Total A 11.86 147.93 20.12 179.91
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

NIL

For and on behalf of the Board

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (Formerly IFMR Investment Managers Private
Limited)

Sd/- Sd/-

Kshama Fernandes - Chaitanya Pande
Whole Time Director Director

DIN: 02539429 DIN: 06934810

Date: May 05, 2022
Place: Mumbai
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1.

Annexure 2

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Northern Arc Capital {the company’s holding company) along with its subsidiaries {(Northern Arc Group) is
committed to making a direct contribution to society as a part of its Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR)

agenda.

The Northern Arc Group has launched Northern Arc Foundation, a section 8 company which shall focus on
building livelihood, skill and vocational development of communities traditionally marginalised by formal
systems, enhancing people’s wellbeing through knowledge building and innovation. The foundation will also
focus on other charitable and socially beneficial purposes related to education and other training and
development initiatives. The Northern Arc group shall contribute to CSR through the Northern Arc Foundation.

The company's CSR policy is in line with the provisions of Section 135 read with Schedule VIl of the Companies
Act, 2013. During the FY 2017-18, the company had constituted a CSR Committee.

The complete CSR policy of the Company can be accessed on the company’s website at
https://www.northernarcinvestments.com/.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Designation / Nature of | Number of | Number of
Sl Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
No. Name of Director Committee held | Committee
during the year attended during
the year

1 Mr. Theodoor Brouwers | Independent Director 1 1

2 Mr. Chaitanya Pande Non-Executive Director 1 1

3 Dr. Kshama Fernandes Whole Time Director 1 1

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the wehsite of the company: https://www.northernarcinvestments.com .

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule {3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not
Applicable.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social respensibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not
Applicable.

Average net profit of the company as per section 135{5): INR 5,32,80,667
{a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 10,65,613

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
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{c} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL
{d} Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): INR 10,65,613

8. {a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: NIL

Total Amount Spent Amount Unspent {in Rs.)
for the Financial Year. | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred te any fund specified under
{in Rs.} Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5),
section 135(6).
Amount, Date of | Name of the | Amount. Date of transfer.
transfer. Fund
11,00,000 NIL — - - -

{b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NIL

(1} 2 (3 {4 {5) {6) 71 (8 9 {10} {11)
) Name Item Local Location of | Project Amount Amount | Amount Mode Mode of
No | of the | from the | area the project. Duration | Allocated | Spentin | transferred | of implementation -
Project. | list  of | {Yes/No} Forthe the to Unspent | Implemen | Through
activities Project current C5R tation - | Implementing
in {Rs} financial | Account for | Direct Agency
Schedule State | Dist, vear {in | the project | (Yes/No) Name | CSR
Vit to the Rs} as per Regn
Act. Section nuenber,
135(6) {in
Rs.)

{c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) {2} {31 4) {5] {6) (7] (8)
S Name of the Project Item from the list | Local Location of the | Amount Mode of | Mode of
No. of activities in | area project spent for the | implementat | implementation -
schedule VIl to | {Yes/No} project (in | ion - Direct | Through
the Act, Rs.). {Yes/No}. implementing
agency.

State Diist Name CSR
regist
ration
numb
er,

1 Towards relief for covid | ltem {i) - Yes Tamilna Chen | 11,00,000 Ne Northam e
related support in the | Promoting du nai Arc
form of oxygen | health care Foundation
concentratars, PPE | including
gears, masks, gloves | preventive
etc. health care and
sanitation

{d} Amount spent in Administrative Overhaads: Nit
{e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 11,00,000
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{g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not Applicable

S1 No. Particulars Amount {in Rs}
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | —
section 135(5)
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year --
{iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-{i}] -
{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or | -
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years | -

[{iii){iv)]

g, (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

S Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No. | Financial | transferred to | spent in the | specified under Schedule VIl as | remaining to be
Year. Unspent CSR | reporting per section 135{6), if any. spent in
Account under | Financial succeeding
section 135 (6} | Year {in Rs.} financial years. {in
{in Rs.) Rs.)
Name of | Amount Date of
the Fund | {in Rs}. transfer.
1 NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year{s):NIL

(1) {21 [E]] {4 i5) (6} {7 {(8) 9)
S No. Project | Name Financial Project | Total Amount | Cumulative | Status  of
D of the | Year in | duration | amount | spent on | amount the project
Project | which the allocated | the spent at | -
project was for the | project the end of | Completed
commenced project in the | reporting | /Ongoing.

{in Rs.) reporting | Financial
Financial | Year. ({in
Year (in | Rs.)

Rs})

1 - = = - = = = -

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NIL

{asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset{s): Nil
(b} Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Nil
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(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,

their address etc: Nil
{d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired {including complete address and location of

the capital asset): Nil

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5}: Not Applicable

sd/- Sd/-
Kshama Fernandes Chaitanya Pande
Whole Time Director Director
DIN: 02539429 DIN: 06934810

Place: Chennai
Date: May 05, 2022
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S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP e e

Rajiv Gandhi Salai
r
Chaiered Accountants Taramani, Chennai - 600 113, Indija

Tel : +91 44 6117 9000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinicn

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Northern Arc Investment Managers Private
Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statemeuts.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, included in the Annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4295
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
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controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. if we conciude that a materiai uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements on May 5, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

e S T e o o P T R o e SN 1T~ il A i o o RA T 1T ANAA

{C) Uil 1€ Dasis O1 UlC WIILLCI1 repreSentations received 1roin e direcilors as on iviarcit > 1, 2usZ
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(2) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 35 to the financial statements, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, , other
than as disclosed in the note 35 to the financial statements, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,

Sred Accol
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whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

Q\M\_ﬁ;‘t‘fe"

per Bharath N S

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 22210934AILPOB8197
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: May 5, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Northern Arc Investment Manager Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that:

()(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

()

(d)

(e

(i)(a)

(b)

(iii) (a)

(b)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has not capitalized any intangible assets in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the
year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

There is no immovable property, held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties.

During the year the investments made to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. The Company has not
provided any guarantee, given any security or granted any loans and advance in nature of
loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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(©

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix)(2)

(b)

©
(d)

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(c) to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
loans to directors, investments made, guarantees and securities given in respect of which
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not
commenied upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified
the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the
services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, income-tax and goods and services tax. The provisions relating to
employees’ state insurance, service tax, sales tax, value added taxes, duty of customs, wealth
tax, and duty of excise are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund,
income-tax and goods and services tax at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, income tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
The provisions of employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, customs duty, value
added tax,

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
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(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further pubiic offer (inciuding debt instrumenis) hence, the requirement io repori on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii)  Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company is not required to have an internal audit system under the provisions of
Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report under clause
3(xiv)(a) and 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.
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(xvi)(@) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not

(b)

(©)

(d

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)(a)

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core investment Company as defined in the reguiations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately previous preceding year.

The previous statutory auditors of the Company have resigned during the year. There were
no issues, objections or concerns raised by the previous statutory auditor.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 23.4 to the financial statements.
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(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 23.4 to the financial statements,

For S.R. Batiiboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W / E300004

per Bharath N S

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 22210934AILPOB8197
Place of signature: Chennai
Date: May 5, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NORTHERN ARC INVESTMENT
MANAGERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

Wa hava anditad tha intarnal fin al nirnlc rith vaforanca tn financial statements ~Ff
vwWE Nave auGliitd tac interna: iinancia: Contrfis wiln reifrence ¢ unandia: swawements fo

Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

&
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The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these

financial statements.

AAnaming af Tndtammal Tiviasmaiad 7
LyAvauing vl AfWiman rinafndiar

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Bharath N S

Partner

Membership Number: 210934
UDIN: 22210934AILPOB8197
Place of Signature: Chennai
Date: May 5, 2022




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

eul N As at As at
Particulars note March 31,2022 March 31,202
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 535 0.02
Financial assets
Investments 5 2,764.23 4,339.84
Advance Income tax assets (net) 6 92.48 24 89
Total non-current assets 2,862.07 4,364.75
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 3 2,017.18 118 04
Other financial assets 7 91 RI 4R 97
Trade receivables 8 92.24 360.45
Cash and cash equivalents 9 122.99 606.46
Other current assets 10 772.68 290.96
Total current assets 3,096.89 1,424.88
Total assets 5,958.95 5,789.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital - 11 361.00 361.00
Other equity 12 3.395.76 2.587.22
Total equity 3,756.76 2,948.22
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 1,225,935 1,400.00
Provisions 14 67.76 29.30
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 24 72.26 97.72
Total non-current liabilities 1,365.97 1,527.03
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 13 163.93 738.40
Trade payables 15
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = =
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 186.57 292.41
Other financial liabilities 16 359.12 145.01
Other current liabilities 17 112,99 128.58
Provisions 14 13.61 10.00
Total current liabilities 836.22 1,314.40
Total equity and liabilities 5,958.95 5,789.63
Significant accounting policies 2and3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAl Firm's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
E,J\\.U\Gy[—f—
bl p )
per Bharaih N 8 Al hrotra . a kernandes vi Vukkadala
Partner Dirw!g}t Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No. 210934 DIN:07277318 DlN:025394?
Kalyanasundaram C Nrithya Murafi|Ganam
Chief Financial Officer Company Scardiary
Membership No> 38778
Place ; Chennai Place - Chennai

Date : May 3, 2022 Date : May 5, 2022




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, uniess otherwise stated

Particul Not Year ended Year ended
artieutars ote March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
REVENUE
Revenue from operations 18 3,088.87 223118
Other income 19 - 180 41
Total income 3,088.87 2,411.59
EXPENSES
Employee benefit expenses 20 72855 494 69
Finance costs 21 21377 294 93
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 519 003
Other expenses 23 942,75 451.37
Total expenses 1,890.27 1,241.04
Profit before tax 1,198.60 1,170.56
Tax expense
Current tax 24 32745 26448
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 24 (19.66) 3231
307.79 296.79
Profit after tax 890.81 873.76
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Remeasurements of the defined benefit asset/ (liability) (23.07) 2228
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 581 56l
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified (17.26) 16.67
subsequently to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year (17.26) 16.67
Total comprehensive income for the year 873.55 890.44
Earnings per equity share (Face Value - INR 100/ Share) 32
Earnings per equity share
Basic (in rupees) 246.76 242.04
Diluted (in rupees) 246 76 242 04
Significant accounting policies 2and3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
[CAI Finn's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
- CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
) . Ashish MEhrotra Kshama Fernandes Rivi Vukkadala

per Bharath N S
Partner
Membership No. 210934

Directbr Director
DIN:07277318 DIN:02539429

-
Q/l\'alyannsnndaram C
Chief Financial Officer STy
Place : Chennai Membership Nb, /38778
Date : May 5, 2022
Place : Chennai
Date : May 5, 2022

Chiel’ Executive Officer




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Year ended Year epded
Particulars Note March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,198 60 1,17036
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5.19 0.05
Unrealised gain on alternative investment funds designated at fair value through profit or loss (58.76) (13182)
Interest expense on term loan 213.77 29493
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,358.80 1,333.71
Changes in workinge capial_
Decrease in trade receivables 268 21 (35187)
{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (42.83) (6.66)
Decrease . (Increase) in other non-financial assets (481.72) (8413)
Increase in [nvestments (264 76) (235 13)
Increase in trade pavables (105 84) 13734
Increase / {decrease) in Other financial liabilities 168.12 (23.51)
Increase / {decrease) in Other non-financial liabilities (15.60) (14.87)
Cash generated from operations 884.38 754.84
Income taxes paid (Net) (395.04) 136.55
Net Cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 489.34 891.39
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 110.53) 0.07
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (10.53) 0.07
C Cash flow [rom financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings 7.573.48 604.26
Repayment of long term borrowings (8,322 .00) (636.00)
Interest paid (213.77) (294 .93)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (962.29) (326.67)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (483.48) 564.65
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 606 46 41 82
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 122.99 606.47
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents:
Notes to cash flow statement
As at As al
Note
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 Components of cash and cash equivalents: 9
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 12299 606 46
122.99 606.46

2 The above cashflow statement has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in the Ind AS-7 on statement of cashflows specified under section 133

of the Companies Act, 2013

3 Change in liabilities arising from financing activities:

. As at As at
P 1
articulars March 31, 2021 Cash Flows  Non Cash Changes March 31, 2022
Borrowings 2,138.40 (748.52) 0.00 1,389.88
Other financial liabilities = - - =
Total 2,138.40 (748.52) 0.00 1,389.88
Significant accounting policies 2and 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064
—
per Bharath N 8§ wsliaima Fernandes Ravi Vukkadula
Partner Director Chief Executive Officer
Membership No 210934 DIN:07277318 DIN:02539429
F 4
—_—
Il L nent i
2SN\

Qﬁlysnasumlaram C Nrithya Murali

Chief Financial Officer Company Secret
Membership No. 3

Place : Chennai

Date : May 5, 2022
Place : Chennai
Date . May 5, 2022




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Equity Share capital of INR 100 each Issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at March 31, 2020 361.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 361.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year %
Balance as at March 31, 2022 361.00
B. Other Equity
Reserves and surplus Other
Comprehensive Total Other
Income (OCl) Equity
. attrihntable to
Employee Capital Redemption  Retgined Earnings  Remeasurements Equity Holders of
stock option Reserve of Defined Benefit the Company
reserve Ohligations

Balance as at March 31, 2020 6500 722.00 909.78 - 1,696.78
Change in equity for the Year ended March 31, 2021
Profit for the year - - 873.76 - 873.76
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability = - 16.67 16.67
Balance as at March 31, 2021 65.00 722.00 1,800.22 - 2,587.22
Change in equity for the Year ended March 31, 2022
Profit for the year - - 890 81 - 890 81
Adjustments* (65.00)
Reclassification of remeasurement of net defined
benefit liability - - (17.26) - (17.26)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 _ 722.00 2,673.76 - 3,460.76

* These relate to cost relating to ESOP of holding company to the employees of the Company relating to earlier periods, that will be reimbursed by the Company are utilised

from the ESOP reserve during the FY 2021-22

Significant accounting policies (refer note 2 and 3)
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report ot even date attached

for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration No. [01049W/E300004 CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064

per Bharath N S
Partner

Membership No. 210934
Place : Chennai

Date : May 5, 2022

DIN:07277318

elﬁlyﬁnnsundnmm C

Chief Financial Officer

Place : Chennai
Date : May 5, 2022

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

vi Vukkadala
Chief Executive Officer

shama Fernande
Director .
DIN:0253942

Nrith}y .Glllra
Company Secr
Membership N




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts ate in Indian Rupees in lakhs)

1

2.1

22

2.3

24

2.5

Reporting entity

Northemn Arc Investment Managers Private Limited was incorporated on February 17, 2014, with the aim of carrying on the business of
Investment Company and also to provide portfolio management services to Offshore funds and all kinds of Investment Funds. The company is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Northern Arc Capital Limited. The Company's registered address is No. 1, Kanagam Village, 10th Floor IITM
Research Park, Taramani Chennai TN 600113.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act’), other relevant provisions of the Act ("Ind
AS").

These financiai statements were authorised tor issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 5, 2022.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to the
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Division II - Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, has been further amended vide Government Notification dated March 24, 2021 to
include certain additional presentation and disclosure requirements and changes to some of the existing requirements. These changes need to be
applied in preparation of financial statements for the financial year commencing on or afier April 1, 2021. Accordingly, these financial
statements has been prepared based on the above requirements.

Details of the Company's accounting policies were disclosed in note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest Rupees in lakhs (two decimals), unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
ltems - Measurement basis
Investments in Alternative Investment Fund Fair value
Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

Current and non current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, Jjudgments and assumptions.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apprapriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made
and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

i) Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of business model and the solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes Jjudgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of
the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affeot Uie petfonmance of the assets and how these are managed and how
the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
{(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs)

ii) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at (he measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exil price) tegardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the balance sheel cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that
include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

iii) Impairment of financial asset

a)

b)
c)

d

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s expected credit loss ("ECL") caleulations arc Sulputs of complex mwdels wiih a number of underlying assumptions regarding
the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and
estimates include :

The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for financial assets should be
measured on a life time expected credit loss ("LTECL") basis.

Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, such as consumer spending, lending interest rates and
collateral values, and the effect on probability of default ( "PD"), exposure at default ("EAD") and loss given default ("LGD").

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into ECL models.

iv) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and considers such outflows to be
probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the outflow is considered to be probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be
made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjeclivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into account a number of
factors including legal advice, the stage of the matier and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to
conclude on these estimates.

These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used
in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

v) Other assumptions and estimation uncertainties

a)
b)
©)

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are included in the following notes:

Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;
Recognition of deferred taxes;

.



Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3
3.1

3.1

i)

ii)
iiif)
3.3

Significant accounting policies

Revenue Recognition

Fee income

Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers and supersedes current revenue recognition guidance found within Ind ASs.

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights
and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good
or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to he entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue Recognition (continued)

Income from investment in alternative investment fund
Income from investment in alternative investment fund is recognised when the right to receive is established.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This is generally when the
shareholders approve the dividend

Fund operating fec
Pursuant to the management agreement/ PPM entered by the Company with the fund, Company incurs all operating expense on behalf of the
fund and recharges to the fund at the specified % as Fund operating fee,

Financial instrument - initial recognition

Date of recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing the
instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from this amount.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities
The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s contractual terms,

measured at either:
Amortised cost

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business
objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based
on observable factors such as:

a) How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
Company's key management personnel.

b) The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular. the
way those risks are managed.

¢) How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value
on the contractual cash flows collected).

d) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment.




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs)

i)

iii)

ii)

3.4

Sole Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI test)

As a second step of its classification process, the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether they meet SPPI test.
"Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount). The most significant elements of
interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment,
the Company applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Accordingly, financial assets are measured as follows

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a busincss moda! whosc objcctive is to hold the asset in order io collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Since, the loans and advances are held to sale and collect contractual
cash flows, they are measured at FVOCI.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.
Financial liability

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liability are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
liability, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in which
the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions
The Company derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes

a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.
The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modificd, such an cxchange or modification is treated as 4 derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. ‘1he
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.




Northern Are Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs)

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward- looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full,
without recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are
sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and
exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

Level 2 financial instruments: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as
interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

Level 3 financial instruments: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the
reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or

loss.

Property, plant and equipment
i. Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. If significant parts of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) ~.plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.11

3.12

ii. Subsequent expenditure \
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the

Company.
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful

lives using the written down value method, and is generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Asset category Useful Life
Computers and accessories 3 years *1
Office equipments S years |

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company determines periodically whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying amount of its non-financial assets. The
recoverable amount (higher of net selling price and value in use) is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflow that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The recoverable amounts of such asset are estimated, if any
indication exists and impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

Employee benefits
i. Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined contribution plan and are charged as an expense as they fall due based
on the amount of contribution required to be made and when the services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of

defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling”). In order to calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the
then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result
of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service
cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

ii. Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

Thie euployees van vatty foiwad 4 pottion uf e unutlllsed aeerued compensated dbsences and utllise it i future service penods or recerve
cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.
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3.12

3.13

3.14

Employee benefits (continued)
iti. Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are
recognized during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences
which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service. The cost of such
compensated absences is accounted as under :

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future compensated

absences; and
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

iv. Employee Stock Option based compensation

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with the Guidance Note on 'Accounting for Employee Share Based Payments' issued by

3 Ayt ot Pave LPN P @ FI-JE PRI ) SRPUIES PRON N -y USRS S [P [HPRIPE. SIS LI IR IR SR v
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note also appiics o graiii 01 SIOCK OPiioiis 01 aioiiier eniérpiise 1n the same

group as the Company, to the employees of the Company.

The Company calculates the compensation cost of the stock options as granted by its holding company based on the grant date fair value of
such options, which is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve / payable to holding company, over
the vesting period on a graded vesting basis. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of options for which the
related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized as an expense is based on
the number of options that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or
to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

i. Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable
or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

ii. Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing
other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the Iiability is settled, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to
incame taxes levied hy the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intond to gottlo ourront tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowings costs are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss account on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Segment reporting- Identification of segments:

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses.
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions for which
discrete financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 33, Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per equity
share is computed by dividing net profit / loss after tax atiributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed and disclosed by dividing the net profit/ loss after tax
attributable to the equity share holders for the year after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non—cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, financing and investing
activities of the Company are segregated. Cash flows in foreign currencies are accounted at the actual rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

Standard Issued But Not Yet Effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 on March 23, 2022, which
contains various amendments to Ind AS. Management has evaluated these and have concluded that there is no material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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4 Property, plant and equipment

Computer and Office
. . Total
accessories equipments
Cost or deemed cost
Balance as at March 31, 2020 9.37 0.80 10.17
Additions 0.07 - 0.07
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9.44 0.80 10.24
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9.44 0.80 10.24
Additions 10.53 - 10.53
Balance as at March 31, 2022 19.97 0.80 20.77
Depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2020 9.37 0.80 10.17
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 0.05 - 0.05
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9.42 0.80 10.22
Balance as at March 31, 2021 9.42 0.80 10.22
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 5.19 = 5.19
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14.61 0.80 15.41
Net block
As at March 31, 2021 _ 0.02 - 0.02
As at March 31, 2022 5.35 - 5.35

This space is intentionally left blank
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6 Advance Income tax assets (net)
Advance Income tax(net of provision for tax) 92.48 24.89
92.48 24.89
7  Other financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Other receivables 87.81 44.97
Security deposits 4.00 4.00
91.81 48.97
Non-Current - -
Current 91.81 48.97
91.81 48.97
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

10

11

a)

b)

Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks
- in current accounts 122.99 606.46
122.99 606.46
Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses 686.43 245.06
Balances with government authorities 86.25 44.33
Advance to supplier - 1.57
772.68 290.96
Share capital
Authorised
500,000 (March 31, 2021: 500,000) equity shares of INR 100/- each with 500.00 500.00
voting rights
1,500,000 (March 31, 2021: 1,500,000) Redeemable preference Shares of INR 1,500.00 1,500.00
100 each
2,000.00 2,000.00
Issued, subseribed and paid up
361,000 (March 31, 2021: 361,000) Equity shares of INR 100/- each with 361.00 361.00
voting rights
361.00 361.00

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares

Equity shares

At the commencement of the year 3,61,000 361.00 3,61,000 361
Add: Shares issued during the year - - -

Less: Shares cancelled during the
year

At the end of the year 3,61,000 361.00 3,61,000 361

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares

i) Equity shares

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders




Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

)

d)

¢)

[
[ ]

a)

b)

)

Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries / associates:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares:
Northern Arc  Capital Limited 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%
including its nominee share holders
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held
Equity shares:
Northern Arc Capital Limited 3,61,000 100% 3,61,000 100%
including its nominee share holders
Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares at the i o
Promoter Name beginning of the Change during the  No. of shares at the % of Total Shares A' change
- year end of the year during the year
Northem Arc Capital Limited 3,61,000 - 3,61,000 100% 0%
As at 31 March 2021
No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % change

Promoter Name beginning of the

% of Total Shares

during the year

year end of the year
year

Northemn Arc Capital Limited 3,61,000 - 3,61,000 100% 0%
Other cquity As at Asai

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Retained esrnings
At the commencement of the year 1,800.22 909.78
Add: Profit for the year 890.81 873.76
Add: Transfer from other comprehensive income (17.26) 16.67
At the end of the year 2,673.76 1,800.22
Capital Redemption Reserve
At the commencement of the year 722.00 722.00
Add: Additions for the year - -
At the end of the year 722.00 722.00
Capital reserve - Employee stock options outstanding account
At the commencement of the year 65.00 65.00
Add: Employee compensation expense during the year - -
Less: Adjustments* (65.00) -
At the end of the year - 65.00

*These relate to cost relating to ESOP of holding company to the employees of the Company relating to earlier periods, that will be

reimbursed by the Company are utilised from the ESOP reserve during the FY 2021-22.
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

)

(i)

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

13

13.2
13.3

14

Other comprehensive income

At the commencement of the year

Remeasurements of defined benefit asset/ (liability) (refer note (iii) below)

Less: Transfer to Retained earnings
Closing balance

Total (a+b+c)

Nature and purpose of reserve
Retained earnings

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

(17.26) 16.67
17.26 (16.67)
3.395.76 2,587.22

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss is the accumulated available profit of the Company carried forward from earlier
years. These reserve are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required

Capital Redemption Reserve

The capital redemption reserve was created on account of the redemption of the redeemable preference shares.

Capital Reserve - Employee stock option outstanding

The Company has established various equity settled share based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the

Company.
Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities comprise actuarial gain or loss, return on plan assets excluding interest and

the effect of asset ceiling, if any.

Borrowings
Measured at amortised cost:

Non-current, Unsecured
Term Loans
- from banks

As at

As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

- from holding company 1,225.95 1,400.00
1,225.95 1,400.00
Current, Unsecured
Term Loans
-Loans from holding company (refer note 31) - 672.45
- Structured Cash credit from holding company 163.93 65.95
163.93 738.40
13.1 Details regarding terms of borrowings (from Holding Company )-Unsecured
Particulars Terms (,)f Interest rate Interest
Redemption
Term Loan-1 5 years 14.00% 350.85
Term Loan-2 4.5 years 13.00% 375.10
Term Loan-3 6 years 13.00% 500.00
Structured Cash credit NA 13.50% 163.93
Interest Rate is fixed and interest payable on quarterly basis.
During the year the company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to Holding Company.
Provisions
Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 40.23 15.41
- Campensated ahsences 27.53 13.89
67.76 29.30
Current
Provision for employee benefits:
- Gratuity 6.43 225
- Compensated absences 5.51 7.75
Provision towards Corporate Social Responsibility Liability 1.68 -
13.61 10.00
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Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
16 Other financial liabilities
Employee benefits payable 200.00 76.01
Payable to related parties (also refer note 31) 159.13 69.00
359.12 145.01
Non-Current - -
Current 359.12 145.01
359.12 145.01
17 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 112.99 128.58
112.99 128.58

This space is intentionally left blank
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

18

19

20

21

22

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers

Fee income (refer note 31)

Income from investment in Altemative Investment Fund
Fund operating fee

Total

Revenue from customers
-That are recognised over a certain period of time
-That are recognised at a point of time

Geographical Market
-In India
-Outside India

Other income

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Interest on income tax refund
Net gain on fair value changes
Provision no longer required written back

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 28)
Share based payments to employees (refer note 29)
Gratuity expense (refer note 17)

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance Cost (refer note 31)
Interest expenses on

- Term loan

- Cash credits
Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 4)
Total

This space is intentionally left blank

2,318.93 1,694.91
625.31 486.87
144.63 4940

3,088.87 2,231.18

3,088.87 2,231.18

3,088.87 2,231.18

. 31.27
5 131.82
- 17.32
Z 180.41
665.93 453.96
27.74 25.32
25.13 .
593 14.55
3.82 0.86
728.55 494.69
195.63 27823
18 14 1670
213.77 294.93
5.19 0.05
5.19 0.05
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
23 Other expenses

Distribution fee expense 318.08 83.26
Legal and professional charges 419.77 485.18

Less: Reimbursement of expense (Refer note 23.1) 187.00 232.78 236.91 248.27
Loss on sale of investment 127.13 -
Rent 30.19 55.13
Corporate social responsibility 12.68 9.65
Fund Set up cost - 2.31
Traveling and conveyance 10.77 4.06
Net Loss on fair value changes 58.76 8.24
Director sitting fee 13.52 17.84
Communication expenses 1.66 13.81
Repairs and maintenance 5.72 3.73
Rates and taxes 0.11 0.39
Subscription charges 40.41 8.37
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 23.3 below) 4.02 3.60
Bank Charges 1.31 0.47
Operating expenses of Funds (refer to note 23.2) 51.11 .
Miscellaneous expenses 34.51 0.47
Total 942.75 459.60

23.1 *Represents Legal and professional expense incurred on behalf of the following funds and reimbursed to the Company:

Northern Arc Capital Limited 152.75 141.49
IFMR FImpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund 3.25 21.72
IFMR FImpact Long Term Credit Fund 1.81 6.95
IFMR FImpact Medium Term Opportunities Fund 27.38 60.05
IFMR FImpact Income Builder Fund 1.82 6.70

187.00 236.91

23.2 Operating expenses of Funds includes

Legal and Professional charges 41.75 -
Audit Fee 9.36 =
51.11 -

23.3 Payments to auditor (excluding goods and services tax)

Statutory audit 3.50 3.00
Tax audit 0.50 0.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.10

4.02 3.60

23.4 Corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) expenditure

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 12.68 11.24
(b) Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 12.68 11.24
(c) Amount spent during the year (in cash) :
(i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - =
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 11.00 9.65
(d) Contributions to Northern Arc Foundation 11.00 9.65

Details of other than ongoing project
(e) Carry forward balances of CSR pre-spent*

Opening balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls) (1.59) -
Amount required to be spent during the year (12.68) (11.24)
Amount spent during the year 11.00 9.65
Closing balance - pre-spent / (shortfalls) 3.27) (1.59)

* Contribution to Northern Arc Foundation has been spent on educational activities.
** The company has not spent any amount on ongoing projects. Accordingly, no disclosures are made in this regard.

. %
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Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31,2021

24 Income tax

A The components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 are:

Current tax
Deferred tax charge/ (credit)
Tax expense

B Reconciliation of the total tax charge

327.45 264.48
(19.66) 32.31
307.79 296.79

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that wonld apply if all profits had been charped
at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax

rate for the years ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 is, as follows:-
Profit before tax

Applicable tax rate

Computed expected tax expense

Permanent differences

Change in tax rate

Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Effective tax rate

1,198.60

25.17%
301.66
6.13
307.79
25.68%

1,170.55

25.17%
294.60
3.19
297.79
25.44%

Note: The Company has elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, as
introduced by the Taxation laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised provision for income tax and

remeasured its net deferred tax asset at lower tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2022.

C Deferred tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Incoime tax expense.

As at Statement of  Other comprehensive As at
March 31, 2021 profit and loss income March 31, 2022
Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 0.49 0.47 - 0.96
Provision for employee benefits 9.89 4.36 5.81 20.06
Impact of fair value of assets (108.10) 14.79 - (93.31)
Total (97.72) 19.62 5.81 (72.30)
As at Statement of Other comprehensive As at
March 31, 2020 profit and loss income March 31, 2021
Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)
Deferred tax asset / (liability) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 0.76 0.27) - 0.49
Provision for employee benefits 14.37 1.13 (5.61) 9.89
Impact of fair value of assets (74.93) (33.17) - (108.10)
Total (59.80) (32.31) (5.61) 97.72)

This space is intentionally left blank
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25 Financial instruments
A Fair value measurement
Valuation principles
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)

market at the measurement date under current market conditions i.e., exit price. This is regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using a valuation technique

Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:

Carrving amount Fair value
Carrying amount Fair value
Particulars Note Mar-22 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-21
Investments
- Alternate Investment Funds # 5 4,781.41 - - 4,781.41
# Fair value for Investment in Alternate Investment Funds are under Level 3 Category
Sensitivity analysis - Increase/ decrease of 100 basis points on yield
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Investments
- Alternate Investment Funds 46.17 46.17 4331 4331

The carrying value and fair value of other financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 as follows:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars Mar-22 Mar-21 Mar-22 Mar-21
Financial assets not measured at fair value:
Trade receivables * 92.24 232 92.24 232
Cash and cash equivalents* 122,99 72.95 122.99 72.95
Other Financial assets * 91.81 8.42
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value:
Borrowings * 1,389.88 1,140.01 1,389.88 1,140.01
Trade payables* 186.57 230.98 186.57 230.98
Other financial liabilities* 359.12 1,035.42 359.12 1,03542

* The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, borrowings, trade payables and other financial
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

B Measurement of fair values
Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.

Financial assets and liabilities

For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short-term maturity (less than twelve months), the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment,
are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. Such instruments include: cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade
payables and other financial liabilities without a specific maturity.

Borrowings and other financial liabilities
The borrowings and other financial liabilities are primarily fixed rate instruments. The interest rates approximates the current market rates for similar
instruments with similar terms. Accordingly, the fair value has been assumed to be equal to the carrying amount.

Transfers between levels I and IT
There has been no transfer in between level I and level 1L

C Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders.

The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the advantages
and secunty afforded by a sound capital position,
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The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows:

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total Borrowings 1,389.88 2,138.40
Less: cash and cash equivalents (122.99) (606.46)
Adjusted net debt 1,266.89 1,531.93
Total equity 3,756.76 2,948.22

Gearing ratio 0.34 0.52

26 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The main purpose of financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to support its operations. The Company's financial assets primarily
includes investments, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s board of directors has an overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customner or counter-party to financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.
Receivables

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer, However, management also considers the
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for receivables by type of counterparty is as follows, All these exposures are with in India.

Particulars Carrying Amount
As at As at|
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Management fee receivable 92.24 360.45
Less : Impairment loss allowance x -
Total 92.24 360.45

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected losses on
account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes of this analysis, the receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due and
the type of risk exposures. Each group is then assessed for impairment using the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model as per the provisions of Ind AS 109 -
financial instruments.

Staging:

As per the provision of Ind AS 109 general approach all financial instruments are allocated to stage 1 on initial recognition. However, if a significant
increase in credit risk is identified at the reporting date compared with the initial recognition, then an instrument is transferred to stage 2. If there is
objective evidence of impairment, then the asset is credit impaired and transferred to stage 3.

The Company considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower
becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

For financial assets in stage 1, the impairment calculated based on defaults that are possible in next twelve months, whereas for financial instrument in

stage 2 and stage 3 the ECL calculation considers default event for the lifespan of the instrument.

As per Ind AS 109, Company assesses whether there is a significant increase in credit risk at the reporting date from the initial recognition. Company has
staged the assets based on the Day past dues criteria and other market factors which significantly impacts the portfolio.

Days past duesstatus Stage Provisions

Current Stage 1 12 Months Provision
1-30 Days Stage 1 12 Months Provision
31-90 Days Stage 2 Lifetime Provision
90+ Days Stage 3 Lifetime Provision
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Grouping
As per Ind AS 109, Company is required to group the portfolio based on the shared risk characteristics, Based on the risk characteristics, the Company has
only one portfolio:

-Trade receivables- Management fee receivable

Expected credit loss ("ECL"):
ECL on financial assets is an unbiased probability weighted amount based out of possible outcomes after considering risk of credit loss even if probability
is low, ECL is calculated based on the following components:

a. Marginal probability of default ("MPD")
b. Loss given default ("LGD")

c. Exposure at default ("EAD")

d. Discount factor ("D")

Marginal probability of default:
PD is defined as the probability of whether borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. Historical PD is derived from the internal data which is
calibrated with forward looking macroeconomic factors

Conditional marginal probability:

As per Ind AS 109, expected loss has to be calculated as an unbiased and probability-weighted amount for multiple scenarios.

The probability of default was calculated for 3 scenarios: upside, downside and base. This weightage has been decided on best practices and expert
judgement. Marginal conditional probability was calculated for all 3 possible scenarios and one conditional PD was arrived as conditional weighted
probability.

LGD

LGD is an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifetime LGD's are defined as a collection of LGD's
estimates applicable to different future periods. Various approaches are available to compute the LGD. The Company has considered the workout LGD
approach by considering historical losses and recoveries. The following steps are performed to calculate the LGD:

1) Analysis of historical credit impaired accounts at cohort level
2) The computation consists of five components, which are:
a) Outstanding balance (POS)
b) Recovery amount (discounted yearly) by initial contractual rate,
¢) Expected recovery amount (for incomplete recoveries), discounted to reporting date using initial contractual rate.
d) Collateral (security) amount

The formula for the computation is as below:
% Recovery rate = (discounted recovery amount + security amount + discounted estimated recovery) / (total POS)
% LGD = 1 - recovery rate

EAD:

As per Ind AS 109, EAD is estimation of the extent to which the financial entity may be exposed to counterparty in the event of default and at the time of
counterparty's default. The Company has modelled EAD based on the contractual and behavioural cash flows till the lifetime of the loans considering the
expected prepayments.

The Company has considered expected cash flows of all the management fees receivables at DPD bucket level which was used for computation of ECL.

Discounting:
As per Ind AS 109, ECL is computed by estimating the timing of the expected credit shortfalls associated with the defaults and discounting them using
effective interest rate.

ECL computation:

Conditional ECL at DPD pool level was computed with the following method:

Conditional ECL for year (yt) = EAD (yt) * conditional PD (yt) * LGD (yt) * discount factor (yt)

The calculation is based on provision matrix which considers actual historical data adjusted appropriately for the future expectations and probabilities.
Proportion of expected credit loss provided for across the stage is summarised below:

Provisions As at As at|

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Stape 1 12 month provision - -
Stage 2 Life time provision £ -
Stage 3 Life time provision - -

Amount of expected credit loss provided for - -

The loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These loss rates are then adjusted appropriately to reflect differences between
current and historical economic conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the loan receivables.

Particulars As at As af]

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
ECL allowance - opening balance - -
Addition during the year - -
Reversal during the year = -
Write offs during the year

Closing provision of ECL
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B.

@ii)

Investments

Investments primarily represents investments in alternative investment funds which are fair valued through profit and loss and hence no impairment loss
allowance is made in accordance with Ind AS 109

. Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company does not have any deposits with banks
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's

approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due.

The Company is monitoring its liquidity risk by estimating the future inflows and outflows during the start of the year and planned accordingly the funding
requirement. The Company manages its liquidity by unutilised cash credit facility and term loans.

The composition of the Company's liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well diverse resource mix,

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s non derivative financia liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments along
with its carrying value as at the balance sheet date.

Particulars Upto 1 year Over1yearto3 Over 3 year to Over 5 year
year S year
As at March 31, 2022
Borrowings 163.93 1,225.95 - -
As at March 31, 2021
Bormowings 738.40 1,400.00 - -

(iii) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company does not have any variable rate financial instruments and thus have no exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates.
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27 Contingent Liabilities and capital commitments (to the extent not provided for)
As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
- Income tax related matters 12.47 12.47

28 Employee Benefits
28.1 Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to State administered fund for qualifying employees, The Company is required to contribute a specified

percentage of the payroll costs to the Fund. The Company recognised INR 27.74 lakhs (March 31, 2021: 25.32 lakhs) towards Provident Fund contributions in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to the fund by the Company is at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

28.2 Defined Benefit Plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. Any unrecognised past services and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The Calculation of the Company's obligation under the plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Details of actuarial valuation of gratuity pursuant to the Ind AS 19

A. Change in present value of March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of obligations at the beginning of the year 17.66 37.50
Current service cost 5.02 12.45
Interest cost 0.91 2.10
Past service cost - a
Benefits settled - (12.12)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 23.07 (22.28)
Present value of obligations at the end of the year 46.66 17.66

B. Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assels ai ihe beginning of the yeat - -
Expected return on plan assets - =
Actuarial gain/ (Ioss)

Employer contributions = =
Benefits settled e

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

C. Actual Return on plan assets

Expected retumn on plan assets - -
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets - -
Actual return on plan assets - -

D. Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
Change in projected benefit obligation

Present value of obligations at the end of the year 46.66 17.66

Fair value of plan assets - -

Net liability recognised in balance sheet 46.66 17.66

The liability in respect of the gratuity plan comprises of the following non-current and current portions:

Current 6.43 225

Non-current 40.23 15.41

46.66 17.66

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

E. Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income

Current service cost 5.02 12.45
Interest on obligation 091 2.10
Past service cost - -
Expected retumn on plan assets - -
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognised in the year 23,07 (22.28)

Total included in 'employee benefits' 29.00 (7.73)
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28 Employee benefits (continued)

a)

b)

29

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

F. Assumptions at balance sheet

Discount rate 6.48% 5.16%
Salary escalation 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality rate Indian Assured  Indian Agsured

Lives (2012-14)  Lives (2012-14)
Attrition rate 15.38% 33.00%
Notes:

The estimates in future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority promotion and other relevant factors, such as
supply and demand in the employee market.
Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation.

G. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) 44.00 49.63 17.04 18.33
Future salary growth (1% movement) 49.78 43.81 18.39 16.97
Attrition Rate (1% movement) 46.23 47.11 17.32 18.01

Employee stock option plan (ESOP)

Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 (ESOP) has been approved by the Board of holding company at its meeting held on May 11, 2016 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on October 7, 2016, ESOP Stock Option Plan 2018 (ESOP) has been approved by the members in the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting held on July 25, 2018.

Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — (“Scheme 1”) formerly IFMR Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — (“Scheme 1)
The Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 is applicable to all employees of the company and its subsidiaries.

The options were issued on 1 March 2017, with an exercise price of INR 10, The options vests over a period of 4 years in 40:20:20:20 proportion.

Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — (“Scheme 2”) formerly IFMR Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 — ("Plan" or
"ESOP") (“Scheme 2”)

The Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2016 is applicable to all employees.

The options were issued in four batches. The first and second batch was issued at a price of INR 110, third and fourth batch issued with an exercise price of INR
121. The options are vested equally over a period of 5 years.

Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 — ("Plan" or "ESOP") (“Scheme 3”)

The Northern Arc Capital Employee Stock Option Plan 2018 is applicable to all employees.

The options were issued in two batches. The first and second batch was issued at an exercise price of INR 181. The options are vested over a period of 3 years in
30:30:40 proportion
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Options outstanding under Scheme 1, Scheme 2 and Scheme 3

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Plan Scheme 1 Scheme 2 Scheme 3 Scheme 1 Scheme 2 Scheme 3
Grant date Various Various Various Various Various Various
Number of options 30,000 2,25,000 1,17,720 24,000 1,63,000 75,518
Exercise price in INR 10 110 to 181 181 10 110 to 188 181 to 188
Vesting period 1 to 5 years 1 to 3 years 1to 4 years 1 to 5 years 1 to 3 years
Option Price 113.65 33.95-40.89 65.77-73.55 113.65 33.95-40.89 65.77-73.55
Weighted average exercise price in
INR 10 122,05 184
Weighted average remaining

= L.71 0.71

contractual life (in years)
Vesting condition

Reconciliation of outstanding options
The details of options granted under the above schemes are as follows,
Particulars

Outstanding at beginning of year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Granted during the year

Outstanding as at end of year

Vested and exercisable as at end of year

Fair value methodology

Time based vesting

Number of options

As at As at
March'31, 2022 March 31, 2021
2,62,518 3,72,720
- 1,10,202
1,72,810 -
4,35,328 2,62,518
- 1,28,378

The fair value of options have been estimated on the dates of each grant using the Black-Scholes model. The shares of Holding Company are not listed on any
stock exchange. Accordingly, the Holding Company had considered the volatility of the stock price based on historical volatility of similar listed enterprises. The
various inputs considered in the pricing model for the stock options granted by the Company during the year are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Dividend vield 0% -
Historical Volatility Estimate 48.12% -
Risk free interest rate 5.61% -
5.1-5.5 -

Expected life of the option (in years)

30 Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Company's operations predominantly relate to managing Alternative investment funds. The information relating to this operating segment is reviewed
regularly by the Company’s Board of Directors (Chief Operating Decision Maker) to make decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its
performance. The CODM considers the entire business of the Company on a holistic basis to make operating decisions and thus there are no segregated
operating segments. The CODM of the Company reviews the operating results of the Company as a whole and therefore not more than one reportable segment is
required to be disclosed by the Company as envisaged by Ind AS 108 Operating Segments.

The company does not have any separate geographic segment other than India. As such there are no separate reportable segments as per IND AS 108 Operating

Segments.

31 Related party disclosures

Related party relationships and transactions are as identified by the management.

Related party relationships and transactions are as identified by the management.

Holding Company :
Northern Arc Capital Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries :
Northern Arc Investment Adviser Services Private Limited
Northern Arc Foundation

Managed funds:
IFMR FImpact Long Term Multi Asset Class Fund
IFMR FImpact Long Term Credit Fund
IFMR FImpact Medium Term Opportunities Fund
IFMR FImpact Income Builder Fund
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund
Northern Arc FImpact Income Builder Fund
Northern Arc India Impact Fund
Northern Arc Income Builder Fund (Series II)
Key management personnel
Chaitanya Pande- Non-executive Director
Ravi Vukkadala - Chief executive Officer
Kalyanasundaram C - Chief Financial Officer *

* Remuneration is paid by the holding company to the Chief Financial Officer
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31 Related party disclosures (continued)

A Transaction with related parties during the year:

. Year ended Year ended
Related Party . Transaction March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Northern Arc Capital Limited Interest expense 213,77 29493
Fee Expenses 129.27 138.69
Reimbursement of Expenses 152.75 141.49
Transfer of Security deposit = 2.00
Purchase of Fixed Assets 10.53 0.07
Loans taken 7,573.48 604.26
Loans repaid 8,322.00 636.00
Northern Arc Foundation Corporate social responsibility (“CSR™) expenditure 11.00 9.65
IFMR FImpact Investment Fund Fee Income 84 11
Income from investment in AIF = 85.96
Reimbursement of Expenses - 6.07
[FMR FImpact Long Term Multi Fee Income 542.34 567.95
Asset Class Fund Income from investment in AIF 89.28 119.77
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 325 21.72
IFMR FImpact Medium Term Microfinance Fund Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.81
IFMR Flmpact Long Term Credit Fee Income 285.14 285.14
Fund Income from investment in AIF 81.55 80.25
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 1.81 6.95
IFMR Flmpact Medium Term Fee Income 378.44 378.36
Opportunities Fund Income from investment in AIF 99.79 75.91
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 27.38 60.05
IFMR Fimpact Income Builder Fec Income 229.42 229.42
Fund Income from investment in AIF 171.33 21.16
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 1.82 6.70
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Investment in Class B units 65,08 59,25
Fund Fee Income 396.22 84.23
Income from investment in AIF 100.05 91.08
Fund operating fee 71,52 -
Northern Arc Income Builder Fund Investment in Class A units 25.10 342.00
(Series II) Investment in Class B units 6,879.00 204.00
Sale of investments - Class B units 6,960.00 -
Fee Income 386.17 64.89
Income from investrment in AIF 57.78 3.14
Loss on sale of investment 127.13 -
Fund operating fee 54.54 -
Northern Arc India Impact Fund Investment in Class B units 400.00 100.00
Fee Income 99.56 0.79
Income from investment in AIF 25.54 1.36
Fund operating fee 18.57 -
Ravi Vukkadala Remuneration*® 147.93 97.29
Employee stock option (in units) 241 -

* Amount attributable to post employment benefits have not been disclosed as the same cannot be identified distinctly in the actuarial valuation.
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B Outstanding balances with related parties as on balance sheet date:

- As at As at
Related Party Transaction March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Northern Arc Capital Limited Equity share capital 361.00 361,00
Preference share capital - =
Advances payable 13.66 238.47
Other payable 159.13 69.00
Borrowings 1,389.88 2,138.40
IFMR FImpact Investment fund Reimbursement of expense receivable 0.17 0.17
IFMR FImpact Long Term Multi Investment in class A (FV) 698.35 725.44
Asset Class Fund Fee Income Receivable - 176.07
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 325 2172
IFMR FImpact Medium Term Reimbursement of expense receivable 0.25 025
Microfinance Fund
IFMR FlImpact Long Term Credit Investment in class A (FV) 553.50 566.49
Fund Fee Income Receivable - 77.69
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 1.81 6.95
IFMR FImpact Medium Term Investment in class A (FV) 566.52 561.99
Opportunities Fund Fee Income Receivable 1.60 021
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 27.38 60.05
IFMR FImpact Income Builder Investment in class A (FV) 645.78 747,46
Fund Fee Income Receivable * 62.51
Reimbursement of Legal and professional charges 1.82 6.70
Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Investment in class B (FV) 1,196.03 1,112.43
Fund Fee Income Receivable 54.02 13.85
Fund operating fee receivable 13.76 3.63
Northern Arc Income Builder Fund Investment in class A (FV) 59919 44015
(Series 1) Investment in class B (FV) = 200.22
Fee Income Receivable - 29.23
Fund operating fee receivable - 1.6t
Northern Arc India Impact Fund Investment in class A (FV) 522.03 103.70
Fee Income Receivable 34.83 0.87
Fund operating fee receivable 6.71 =
Ravi Vukkadala Employee stock option (in units) 4.52 2.11

(also refer note 30)

C The Company has been appointed as the investment manager
a) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5% per
annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income' under Note 19.

b) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund III ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5%
per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income' under Note 19,

¢) by the Trustee of IFMR Finance for Freedom Fund IV ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5%
per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income' under Note 19.

d) by the Trustee of [FMR Finance for Freedom Fund V ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.35%
per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee income' under Note 19.

f) by the Trustee of Northern Arc Money Market Alpha Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of
0.40% per annum on the Assets under management of the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 19.

g) by the Trustee of Northern Arc India Impact Fund ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee of 1.5% per
annum on the capital committed by Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 19.
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Related party disclosures (continued)

h) by the Trustee of Northem Arc Income Builder Fund Sereies II ("the Fund"), Axis Trustee Services Limited, for which the Company receives management fee

of 1.5% per annum on the capital committed by the Class A and Class B unit holders of the Fund and disclosed as 'Fee Income' under Note 19.

Earnings per share — Basic and Diluted:

Particul Year ended Year ended
articuiars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Earnings

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of basic EPS 890.81 873.76

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for calculation of diluted EPS 890.81 873.76

Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the period 3,61,000 3,61,000

Shares issued during the period E -

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 3,61,000 3,61,000

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic EPS 3,61,000 3,61,000

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of diluted EPS 3,61,000 3,61,000

Face value per share 100.00 100.00

Earning per share

Basic (in rupees) 246.76 242.04

Diluted (in rupees) 246,76 242.04

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED’) which came into force from October 2, 2006, certain disclosures are required
to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises. On the basis of the information and records available with management and confirmation sought
from suppliers on registration with specified authority under MSMED, principal amount, interest accrued and remaining unpaid and interest paid during the year

to such enterprise is NIL

As at

As at

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to
any supplier as at the end of each accounting period

Principal -
Interest -
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have -
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and -

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until -
such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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Other Statutory Information
The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property
The company is not decleared as wil ful defaulter by any bank of financial institution or other lender
The company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
The company do not have any charges or satisfaction which 1s yet to be regstered with ROC beyond the statutory period,
The company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

There company has not provided any loans to directors or has investments made or given guarantees and securities in respect provisions of Section 185 and 86

of ihie Conipaiiies Aci 2616

As part of the normal business, the Company obtains borrowings from its holding company and invests in alternative investment fund managed by the Company.
The AIFs invests in debt instruments issued by various originators based on decision made by the investment committee of the respective funds. These
transactions are part of the Company’s normal investment activities / business, which is conducted after exercising proper due diligence including adherence to
terms of Private Placement memorandum of respective AlFs and other guidelines.

Other than the nature of transactions described above,
i) No funds have been advanced or loans or invested by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies) (“intermediaries”) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (~Ultimate beneficiaries™)
ii) The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shal! whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company (*Ultimate beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Previous year's figures
Previous year’s figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s classification / presentation, wherever applicable Previous year’s figures have

been audited by predecessor auditor.

As per our report of even date attached

for S.R.Batliboi & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountunts Northern Arc Investment Managers Private Limited
ICAI Firm's Registration No. 101049W/E300004 CIN: U74120TN2014PTC095064 (\

%

|
Kshama Fernandes vi Vukkadzala
Director Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 0"‘\30-1”9

Q—M«N‘/ \ 'W

per Bharath N §
Partner
Membership No. 210934

alyanasundaram C Nrithya'! Iural sanam
Chief Financial Officer Company S:.cravk;"
Membership No 38778

Place : Chennai Place : Chennai
Date : May 5, 2022 Date : May S, 2022




